
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Community Safety, 
Environment and Residents 

Services Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 9 June 2015 
7.00 pm 

Small Hall - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Administration Opposition Co-optees 

Councillor Larry Culhane 
(Chair) 
Councillor Iain Cassidy 
Councillor Sharon Holder 
 

Councillor Charlie Dewhirst 
Councillor Steve Hamilton 
 

  
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2063 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

29 May 2015 
 

 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Community Safety, Environment and 
Residents Services Policy and 

Accountability Committee 
Agenda 

 
9 June 2015 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1. MINUTES  1 - 5 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2015. 
 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR   

 The Committee is asked to elect a Vice Chair from its membership for 
the 2015/16 Municipal Year. 
 

 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 To invite questions from members of the public present.  
 
Members of the public with more complex issues are invited to submit 
their questions in advance in order to allow a more substantive answer 
to be given. Questions can be sent to the contact officer shown on the 
front page of the agenda.  
 
 
 

 



6. BOROUGH-WIDE 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  6 - 15 

 This report sets out a draft programme for the feasibility study, 
consultation, and delivery of a borough-wide 20mph speed limit. 
 

 

7. PROVISION OF SPORT AND LEISURE FACILITIES  16 - 23 

 This report sets out the context for the encouragement of greater 
physical activity in the borough, with particular reference to younger 
people. 
 

 

8. UPDATE ON SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE SYSTEMS (SUDS) 
SCHEMES  

24 - 36 

 This report provides an overview of the various Sustainable Drainage 
Systems projects being undertaken within the borough. 
 

 

9. WORK PROGRAMMING  37 - 39 

 The Committee is asked to consider the work programme for the 
2015/16 Municipal Year. 
 

 

10. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 Future meetings of this Committee for the 2015/16 Municipal Year are 
scheduled for: 

• 16 September 2015 

• 18 November 2015 

• 18 January 2016 

• 02 March 2016 

• 12 April 2016 
 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Community Safety, 
Environment and 

Residents Services 
Policy and 

Accountability 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Tuesday 21 April 2015 
 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Iain Cassidy, Larry Culhane (Chair), 
Steve Hamilton and Sharon Holder 
 
Other Councillors: Wesley Harcourt (Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport 
& Residents Services) 
 
Officers: Arif Mahmud (Group Leader, Projects & Contracts), David Gawthorpe 
(Policy and Projects Officer), and Ellen Whitchurch (Head of Development 
Management) 
 

 
51. MINUTES  

 
On page 3, Item 45 – Cycling in the Borough, the reference to ‘the ‘Boris bike’ 
cycle hire scheme’ was changed to ‘the Santander Cycles bike hire scheme’. 
 
RESOLVED 
That, with changes noted above, the minutes of the meeting held on 3 
February 2015 be approved as a correct record of the meeting. 
 
 

52. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Councillor Harry Phibbs. 
 
 

53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

54. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There were no members of the public in attendance. 
 
 

55. HIGHWAYS MAINTENANCE WORKS PROGRAMME 2015-16  
 
The Committee received a report from the Director of Transport & Highways 
detailing the proposed Highways Maintenance Work Programme for 2015-16. 
Officers informed the Committee that the works programme was prepared by 
carrying out inspections of every street in the borough and ranking them by 
need. The available budget then determined how many of the ranked issues 
were added to the programme. 
 
Members requested a copy of the scoring system used to rank maintenance 
works and information about which streets had narrowly missed inclusion on 
the work programme. 
 
ACTION: Arif Mahmud to send the above information to the Committee 

 
The Chair asked if roads were automatically maintained after a period of time. 
Officers responded that inclusion on the works programme was entirely based 
on need not age. Weather, ground movement, and heavy traffic were the 
main reasons for deterioration and without these factors roads could last up to 
thirty years. 
 
Councillors asked if the inspections were timed or took place throughout the 
year. Officers responded that there were safety inspections throughout the 
year as required by the Code of Practice but the yearly works programme 
inspections took place during the Summer. 
 
Councillors asked what happened in cases where problems were caused by 
utility companies works. Officers responded that they would challenge utility 
companies if roads had not been properly restored. The Council has a record 
of utility works and companies would be charged for the maintenance if they 
had not fulfilled their obligations. 
 
Councillors asked if residents’ complaints factored into the works programme. 
Officers responded that there was a separate budget for smaller scale 
reactive works based on input from residents. 
 
The Chair asked if the Council was responsible for roads on housing estates 
or whether they would come under HRH. Cllr Harcourt responded that 
housing estates were situated on private land and would therefore have their 
own maintenance budget, works programme, and contractors. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

56. STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT IN PLANNING  
 
The Committee received a report from the Executive Director for Transport & 
Technical Services outlining revisions to the Statement of Community 
Involvement in Planning (SCI) following changes to local consultation 
practices. Officers informed the Committee that the SCI explains how and 
when the community can get involved in the Council’s planning processes 
(e.g. the Local Plan). A six week consultation was carried out and fifteen 
representations were received. The majority of these were from statutory 
consultees like Thames Water and Transport for London. 
 
The updated document was scheduled to go to Full Council for adoption in 
June (subject to Annual Council agreeing the meeting calendar). Following 
adoption the document will be published on the Council’s website as a guide 
for officers, applicants, residents, and community groups. The SCI provided a 
clear and transparent guide for consultation and due process. 
 
Councillors asked officers to outline the main differences between the new 
SCI and current SCI. Officers responded that the main differences were as 
follows: 

• Developers were required to bring proposals to the community before 
the application is submitted. 

• Ward panels were introduced and pilots were run in some areas. 

• Legislative changes around statutory notifications had changed and, 
while the Government still required paper notices, there were 
discussions about moving to electronic notification. LBHF had won a 
DCLG bid to become a pilot area for the new system which was 
expected to reduce the administrative burden related to paper 
notifications. 

 
Officers noted an error in the table of notifications on page 58; the text, 
‘Everyone that was consulted about the application will be notified of the 
decision’ should have been removed. Officers informed the Committee that 
the number of people involved meant it was unfeasible to inform everyone by 
letter but moving to a self-service online system would mitigate the issue. 
 
Councillors asked how developers were informed about community groups to 
consult with. Officers responded that the Council suggested developers held 
a public exhibition to show their proposals to the community and invite 
feedback. The Council gave the developer a list of invitees, including 
residents and community groups.  
 
Councillors proposed that to raise awareness of local action groups they 
could be listed alongside statutory consultees on the materials sent to 
residents about upcoming developments. 
 
ACTION: Ellen Whitchurch to include the above proposal in feedback on 

the SCI 
 
Councillors raised concerns that there was a disparity in community expertise 
and resources in different areas of the borough. Councillors asked what 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

support was available to residents and if the Council could provide resources 
to help local groups. It was also noted that small and medium scale 
developments were often challenged but the large developments (e.g. 
Westfield) were deemed too big to challenge. 
 
Officers responded that while the Council was not able to provide support 
because of its role as the decision maker, there were a number of voluntary 
groups that fulfilled this role including the Planning Advisory Service and 
Planning Aid for London. Both groups provided personal support and 
materials and were often staffed by planners volunteering their time. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the proposal below be included in feedback on the SCI before it is 
approved by Full Council. 
 
‘That to raise awareness of local action groups they could be listed alongside 
statutory consultees on the materials sent to residents about upcoming 
developments.’ 
 
 

57. SERCO CONTRACT EXTENSION - FACTS AND PROCESSES  
 
The Committee received a report from the Executive Director for 
Environment, Leisure, and Residents’ Services that set out the facts and 
processes that led to the extension of the Serco waste collection and street 
cleansing contract. The Serco contract for waste management was let in June 
2008 and originally procured for seven years with an option for a further 
seven year extension. The extension of the contract included cost efficiencies 
of around £465k. 
 
Cllr Harcourt informed the Committee that he had continued to carry out 
regular inspections of selected streets following some complaints about the 
service. The majority of the areas that were inspected were within the 
standards set by the Council. There had been some problems but the 
enforcement team had addressed them as they arose. On Lakeside Road 
CCTV had been used and a fly-tipper was identified. 
 
Councillors noted that there seemed to be a discrepancy between the service 
reports  and the public perception of the level of service. Councillors asked if 
the performance indicators and standards used were reflecting the situation 
on the ground. Cllr Harcourt responded that the indicators were standardised 
across a number of boroughs and were accurate. 
 
Cllr Harcourt informed the Committee that there had been a number of 
meeting with Serco to discuss issues and find solutions. Cllr Harcourt also 
noted that there was an effort underway to make residents better understand 
their role and follow the Council’s rules. Signs stating ‘No fly-tipping’ were 
replaced with signs stating ‘Do not leave rubbish here’ to make the language 
as clear as possible. 
 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillors raised concerns about rumours of Serco reducing their level of 
staffing. Cllr Harcourt responded that there were no plans to reduce the level 
of staffing. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

58. WORK PROGRAMMING  
 
The Chair requested that the work programme was circulated to members 
and any suggestions for items were emailed to David Abbott, Committee 
Coordinator (david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk).  
 
 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.00 pm 

 
 
 
 

Chairman   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact officer: David Abbott 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2063063 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 5



 

 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND RESIDENTS 

SERVICES POLICY & ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

9 June 2015 
 

Borough-Wide 20mph Speed Limit 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Review & Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: ALL 
 

Accountable Executive Director: Nigel Pallace, Executive Director of Transport and 
Technical Services 
 

Report Author: Slobodan Vuckovic 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 3360 
E-mail: 
slobodan.vuckovic@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1. On 3 October the Cabinet approved the 2015-16 Transport for London 
(TfL) funded integrated transport programme which included £200,000 to 
carry out a feasibility study and consultation on a borough-wide 20mph 
speed limit. 

 
1.2. This project is in line with the new administrations manifesto ‘the change 

we need’ in particular point five ‘greening the borough, being fair to drivers 
and better for cycling’. 
 

1.3. This report sets out a draft programme for the feasibility study, 
consultation and delivery of the project. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 6



2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1. That the committee review and comment on the indicative implementation 

programme set out in paragraph 6.5 and 6.6 of this report and associated 
presentation. 
 

2.2. That the committee review and comment on the options for delivery as set 
out in paragraph 5.8 of this report and associated presentation. 

 
 

3. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

3.1. Some London boroughs, and cities outside London, have implemented a 
borough-wide 20mph speed limit and others are presently pursuing one. 
The default speed limit for the vast majority of roads in London is 30mph 
and the main reason cited for reducing this limit is to improve road safety. 
 

3.2. LBHF, as part of its transport plan, has targets to reduce both the number 
of overall road casualties and reduce the number people killed and 
seriously injured in collisions. We have made good progress towards our 
evolving targets over the last ten years through a combination of 
engineering, enforcement and education.  
 

3.3. Areas with slower vehicle speeds are associated with increased 
opportunities for walking and cycling. Additionally, evidence shows the 
increased participation in walking and cycling result in lower obesity, lower 
rates of diabetes, improvements to mental health and a decrease in 
cardiovascular disease across all ages. Therefore this initiative can be 
seen  as a contribution towards health and wellbeing. 

 
3.4. Over the last ten years LBHF have implemented sixteen 20 mph zones 

and a couple of 20 mph speed limit areas covering about a third of our 
streets. The map shown in Appendix 1 shows where these areas are and 
all have been implemented based on support from residents and 
businesses. 
 

3.5. 20mph zones consist of zonal entry and exit signs alongside traffic 
calming features, such as speed cushions. These zones were selected 
and implemented based on their collision and casualty history and they all 
have seen a reduction in both the speed of traffic and the number and 
severity of casualties.  

 
3.6. 20mph limit areas consist of entry and repeater signs but do not require 

traffic calming features. These have been found to have a lesser effect on 
speed reduction. 

 
3.7. Local authorities that have implemented a borough-wide reduced speed 

limit have mostly done so using the 20mph limit approach using repeater 
signs and road makings rather than the extensive use of traffic calming 
that is a legal requirement in a 20mph zone. 

Page 7



 
3.8. Portsmouth was the first city to go 20mph and they have reported an 

average speed reduction of 1.3mph. The Department for Transport state 
that a reduction of 2mph can be achieved by 20mph limits without traffic 
calming. They further state that with every 1mph speed reduction a 6% 
casualty reduction is achieved. Portsmouth have reported a 21% casualty 
reduction. At present there is insufficient data from London borough-wide 
speed limits to compare. 

 
 

4. SURVEYS 

4.1 In April 2015 (20-27 April) we have conducted borough-wide traffic surveys   
in which we surveyed 100 roads for traffic speed and volume for 7 days. 
Currently we are analysing the survey results and they should form the 
base (‘before’ figures should we go ahead with the scheme 
implementation), which can later be compared with the ‘after’ data.  A 
broad analysis of the speed surveys is shown in Appendix 3. 

 
5. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES 

5.1. Our streets are not just for vehicles they are also places where people live, 
work, spend time shopping and socialising. Our streets are vital for the 
economy, moving people and goods from place to place. Streets need to 
be safe and not daunting or unpleasant for people walking and cycling. 
Our transport plan seeks to make our streets move liveable spaces; will 
lower speed limits help us achieve this? 
   

5.2. Why should we set a lower speed limit? Numerous studies demonstrate 
that lower speeds are safer. Higher speeds result in more collisions and 
more severe casualties. At 20mph there is a 2.5% chance of being fatally 
injured in a collision compared to a 30% chance at 30mph. 
 

5.3. In 2010 there were 690 people injured in collisions in the borough and we 
have set ourselves an ambitious target to reduce this figure by 
approximately a third by 2030 as set out in our transport plan. In 2013 
there were 678 casualties (a slight reduction of nearly 2%), which 
suggests that further action should be taken. The evidence from other 
projects suggests that implementation of a borough-wide 20mph speed 
limit can achieve reductions in casualty numbers at a scale that is in line 
with our targets. 
   

5.4. There are many assumptions and myths about 20mph speed limits and air 
quality, in the press. Some presume pollution increases; others suggest a 
decrease. The available and limited empirical evidence suggests a 
negligible change and depend entirely on the nature of the traffic flow in 
any one area and the extent to which it is free flowing. 
 

Page 8



5.5. A vehicle travelling at 20mph will reach its destination slower than a 
vehicle travelling at 30mph. However in a dense urban environment such 
as LBHF this is an overly simplistic assessment again based on the free 
flowing nature or otherwise of our network. We do not receive feedback 
from residents and businesses about slower journey times in our existing 
20mph zones, however most of these are on minor roads. Transport for 
London are currently modelling the impact of reduced speed limits on the 
performance on the road based transport they are responsible for, namely 
buses and taxis. 
 

5.6. Traffic travelling at 20mph can create a safer and more pleasant 
environment for walking and cycling which can in turn support long-term 
behaviour change and an increased take up of sustainable and active 
travel. The Hammersmith and Fulham Cycling Campaign support 20mph 
speed limits and have been instrumental in the limit proposed for 
Hammersmith Bridge. Whilst data is not available to calculate the precise 
increase in walking and cycling trips it is considered that a 20 mph speed 
limit would offer a significant contribution towards making our streets more 
liveable and changing perceptions about travel in London.   

 
5.7. The enforcement of any speed limit is the responsibility of the police. 

There are however a number of fixed speed cameras on 30mph borough 
roads in LBHF. Very little mobile enforcement is carried out by the police 
due to other priorities. Their default position is that they do not enforce 
20mph speed limit of zones and that they should be self-enforcing. In 
reality there is likely to be no noticeable change in enforcement if a 
borough-wide 20mph speed limit is implemented. There is however 
evidence to suggest that the police position in regards to supporting 
borough-wide 20mph limits is becoming more favourable.  
 

5.8. There are a number of options for implementing a borough-wide 20mph 
speed limit. The first would be to continue with the approach taken over 
the last decade delivering schemes on an area-by-area basis. The second 
would be to implement a borough-wide 20mph limit in one go and the third 
would be to implement a borough-wide limit in stages. A commonly heard 
objection  to “signed only” limits is that drivers do not comply with them. 
The evidence suggests that they do result in reduced speeds but the 
reduction is less than when accompanied with physical measures. One 
approach would be to introduce a signed-only borough-wide limit initially, 
and then over time add physical measures in areas where there are 
continuing problems with non-compliance and collisions. 
 

5.9. Based on costings from the London Borough of Camden, the cost for 
implementation of the scheme is likely to be in the region of £500,000. 
Should Members decide to progress the scheme it would be intended to 
fund this from Transport for London’s integrated transport allocation to the 
Borough in 2016/17. 
 
 

6. CONSULTATION 

Page 9



6.1. This PAC report is the first stage of the extensive engagement and 
consultation that is planned for this project.  
 

6.2. As has been the case for other boroughs and indeed LBHF when 
considering reducing the speed limit an informal consultation is designed 
and issued to those residents and businesses directly affected. For this 
project this would be every single resident and business in the borough. 
We intend to deliver a leaflet to every property in the Borough, but also 
encourage the use of on-line consultation facilities. 
 

6.3. Attached at Appendix 2 are questions we intend to ask in the consultation.  
Additional information about the scheme as well as common questions 
and answers’ will be provided in the online consultation under frequently 
asked questions (FAQs) and in the questionnaire leaflet as additional text.  

 
6.4. A dedicated web page (for example www.lbhf.gov.uk/20mph) will be set 

up, in a similar manner to the 2012 Olympics, in order to provide a one 
stop shop for information regarding the project, the programme, how to get 
involved, key dates etc. This should be live from 9 June 2015. 
  

6.5. The LBHF leaflet is intended to be delivered by the end of June, 2015, 
with a final return date at the end of July. Responses to this consultation 
will be analysed in August 2015 and presented to Cabinet in the autumn of 
2015. Subject to the results of this consultation Cabinet approval for 
implementation is programmed for early 2016, subject to funding. 
 

6.6. If 20 mph proposals are supported by Cabinet a final round of statutory 
consultation on making the legal orders to support the 20mph speed limit 
is indicatively programmed for early 2016. Depending on the final design 
of the project residents and businesses will be advised as to when works 
will be taking place on their local roads and the works will take place in 
2016/17. 

 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. None. N/A N/A 

 

Page 10



Appendix 1 – existing 20 mph zones and speed limits 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 11



Appendix 2 – consultation questions 

 
Question 1

Do you support a Borough-wide 20mph speed limit on roads  

managed by Hammersmith and Fulham council?

(please tick one box only)

YES NO Only some of 

roads  
 
 

Question 2

If you ticked 'only some roads', which roads in your opinion should remain as a 30mph speed limit?

Please see the map attached to identify main or secondary roads. (You can tick more than one box)

Main roads
Secondary 

roads
Other  (name the road/s)

 
 

Question 3

If you are responding as an individual please tell us how often you use the 

following ways of travelling? (Please tick as many boxes as apply)

Never Daily

Several 

times a 

week

Several 

times a 

month

Bus

Bicycle

Motorcycle

Car  

Walk

Taxi

 

Page 12



Question 4

Which measures would you like to see to support a reduced speed limit?

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



Appendix 2 (continued) – map referenced in question 2 
 

 

Page 14



Appendix 3 
 

 
In April 2015 we surveyed 100 roads in the Borough for 7 days. The table and chart 

below show the proportion of roads in each speed range.  
 

Speed of 85%* 

of traffic  

 (mph) 

10-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-35 35+ 

% of roads 3% 9% 41% 37% 10% 0% 

 
* 85% speed is the speed at or below 85% of all vehicles are observed to travel under free flowing 

condition. This is a nationally recognised method of assessing traffic speeds. 

 

 
 

      
 

 

3% 

9% 

41% 
37% 

10% 

10-15

15-20

20-25

25-30

30-35

35+

10-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-35 35+

3% 

9% 

41% 
37% 

10% 

Page 15



 
 

 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

Community Safety, Environment and Residents 
Services Policy and Accountability Committee 
 
9 June 2015 
 

Provision of Sport and Leisure Facilities 
 

Report of the Bi-Borough Head of Leisure and Parks 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Review and Comment 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected:  
All 
 

Accountable Executive Director:  
 

Report Author: Ullash Karia, Acting 
Director and Head of Leisure & Parks 
 

Contact Details: 
E-mail: ullash.karia@rbkc.gov.uk 

 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 This report sets out the context for the encouragement of greater physical 

activity in the borough, with particular reference to younger people. 
 
2. Community Sports and Physical Activity Strategy 2011 to 2016 
 
2.1 The borough’s community sports and physical activity strategy provides 

Hammersmith & Fulham with priorities areas when planning for the future.  In 
Hammersmith & Fulham we recognise the important contribution sport and 
other structured physical activities can make to community life, be it physical 
health and mental wellbeing, community cohesion and providing diversionary 
activity for young people. 

 
2.2 The strategy was the product of the strategic CSPAN (Community Sports and 

Physical Activity Network) group and outlines the co-ordinated approach to 
local sports planning and seeks to ensure that local resources are used in the 
most effective way possible.  Key to the strategy is to enable people to 
develop sporting skills no matter what their current ability. Everyone should be 
able to participate in sport regardless of their age, disability, gender, ethnic 
background or current skill level. 

 
2.3 The strategy is able to provide guidance for all organisations within the sector 

be it public, commercial and voluntary sectors and identifies areas where the 

Agenda Item 7

Page 16



 
 

council can work in partnership with others to meet the needs of the 
community in the current difficult economic times. 

 
2.4 Now in the fifth year of a six year strategy there have been some tangible 

successes connected to the six strategic themes of the current sports strategy 
during this Olympic legacy period. 

 
3. Hammersmith and Fulham CSPAN – Developing a Strategic Network 
 
3.1 The CSPAN (Community Sport and Physical Activity Network) has become a 

key meeting group which discusses and shares opportunities across the local 
area, and has allowed for the development of new opportunities through 
partnership working, including the inception of the projects H&F Active 
Communities, Change4Life Parks and Get Going.  

 
3.2 Moving forward it will continue to operate as a key focus group continuing to 

engage with important partners including internal colleagues, the shared 
services public health team, the newly amalgamated London Sport (London’s 
strategic body for sport), the borough’s third sector organisations including the 
three football in the community trusts and Better our leisure contractor for 
three sites in the borough.  

 
Attendees have included: 

 

Pro-Active West London / London Sport 
QPR Football in the Community Trust 
Fulham FC Foundation 
LBHF Policy and Strategy 
LBHF Transport Planning 
LBHF Planning  
LBHF Communications  
GLL Leisure Contractor 
London Amateur Boxing Association 

LBHF Sports and Leisure  
Tri-Borough Public Health 
Hammersmith Community Gardens Assc 
Sobus (formerly CAVSA) 
Phoenix School 
London Sports Trust 
Tri-borough Libraries 
Action on Disability 
London Youth 

 
4. Strategic Themes 
 
 Reaching Those Who Need It 
 
4.2 The development of targeted projects during this strategy have seen 

organisations work together to create many opportunities for those identified 
as hard to reach and inactive; young people, BME communities, women and 
girls and disabled people. The projects delivered include: 

 

Women and girls 
Sep’ 2014 - 
present 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
‘Us Girls Starz’ is activity for girls aged 10-13 years old funded 
by Street Games (£4k). The project is committed to developing 
high quality, engaging activity for young females living in 
disadvantaged communities in London; supporting participants 
on a journey through sport so they remain active growing up.  
Currently delivering activity to 2 schools (60 participants) with 
another two being targeted in the summer term. 
 

Page 17



 
 

 
Sep’ 2013 - Oct’ 
2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2011 - 2013 
 

The ‘Us Girls Alive’ programme supported young female 
volunteers to assist in the development of well-being clubs that 
deliver and signpost to local physical activity opportunities 
across the local area.  The project in Hammersmith & Fulham 
has seen 200 new young women participants take part in 
activity, leadership programmes and nutrition workshops in 
White City and Sands End areas.  
 
Us Girls was the first project to target young women and to 
engage them in new and existing local activity. The project, 
funded by StreetGames (£20k), wanted to improve the health of 
young women (16-25yrs) in deprived areas across the country. 
Hammersmith & Fulham had one of London’s most successful 
projects seeing over 700 young women take part over the two 
years in activities including basketball, netball swimming & 
zumba. 
 

Disabled people 
June 2014 - 
present 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 2014 - 
present 
 
 
 
 
Aug 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
2011 - present 
 
 
 
 

 
‘Sport for Life’ project is led by Action on Disability and funded 
by Sport England to broaden participation in lifelong activity by 
disabled people in the borough.  The project brings £120k of 
funding to enable greater access and participation amongst the 
disabled community of Hammersmith and Fulham.  Leisure 
Services’ Sports Development Team (SDT) is supporting 
ongoing sessions of archery, athletics and stretch & tone, which 
have proved very successful.  
 
The SDT works with Bishop Creighton House to run tai chi 
sessions at Lillie Road Recreation Ground.  The activity has 
been running for six months and averages ten participants per 
session, at least 50% of participants have a learning disability. 
 
A community disability sports day was run in partnership with 
Let Me Play, Action on Disability, Mencap and local sports clubs 
on the 15th August at Linford Christie Sports Centre. Over 55 
people aged 12 – 25 years attended the day experiencing 
dance, goalball, archery and many other activities. This is set to 
become a regular annual event. 
 
The SDT works with Mencap, Action on Disability and Bishop 
Creighton House to arrange sports training and competition 
linked to the Special Olympics GB organisation.  Regular 
training in sports and competition occurs for disabled people in 
athletics, boccia and football. Three athletes have competed for 
London at the National Games event. 
 

Young people  
2010 to present 
 
 
 
 

 
Sportivate is a Sport England Olympic Legacy project that 
provides funding to local authorities and sports organisations to 
develop community sport projects targeting new participants 
aged 11-25 years old with low participation levels. This year the 
programme has engaged 670 participants with 465 regular 

Page 18



 
 

 
 
 
2013 to present 
 
 
 
 
 
Annually 
 
 
 
 
 
Annually 
 

attendees, across the project it has engaged 2540 with 1670 
having a very regular attendance. 
 
Satellite clubs programme is a four year Sport England funded 
initiative that aims to establish partnerships between schools 
and community sports clubs to set up activity on secondary 
school sites. Across the first two years of the project seven of 
the boroughs schools and colleges have established new 
activities. 
 
The London Youth Games is Europe’s largest sports festival.  
The SDT supported 20 teams to represent the borough in 
multiple sports across 2014.  288 young people participated in 
trials and competitions in 2014 and has seen new teams in 
BMX, handball and triathlon. 
 
The SDT organise a trial each year for the London Mini 
Marathon event and in 2015 72 participants from eight schools 
ran.  As a result of this event in April 40 young people aged 
between11 and 17 years took part in the most prestigious road 
run in the country. 
 

 
 Addressing the Participation Barriers 
 
4.3 There are a range of factors which prevent people from participating in more 

activity. There has been work done to try and assist people to overcome these 
barriers including: 

 

Cost/Poverty 
Spring 2014 
 
 
 
Spring 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
Summer 2014 
 
 
 
 
All year 
 
 
 
2013 - Present 
 
 

 
The SDT worked with Access Sport to build a £50k BMX track, 
at no cost to the council, providing a free to use recreation 
space for aspiring racers with a developing community club with 
coaches. 
 
Leisure and Parks Services commissioned and managed the 
project to build an outdoor gym at no cost to the council, next to 
Old Oak Community Centre providing free gym based activity in 
an area where there are few recreation facilities.  Sessions to 
encourage residents to use it confidently ran through the 
summer. 
 
Free children’s family and adult activities ran across the 
borough’s parks, as part of an externally funded Change4Life 
Parks summer programme. This engaged with over 384 people, 
12% were disabled, 52% were female and 46% from BME 
groups. 
 
The SDT continue to support Parkrun at Wormwood Scrubs 
(average attendance of 40) and Bishops Park (100) which are 
free 5k runs held weekly on Saturday mornings. 
 

Page 19



 
 

 
 
 
 
All year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2011 - Present 

H&F Active Communities, a three year Sport England funded 
sports development project has delivered free and low cost 
activities to four estates with significant poverty in the borough 
(Old Oak, White City, West Kensington and Edward Woods).  
The project has engaged with 523 people this year, with an 
additional 145 engaged in one off activity. 
 
The SDT has an accredited local walking programme called 
Walkwell. This enables the lead officer to run walk leader 
training to develop volunteer walk leaders and develop regular 
short walks. There are five weekly walks and ten mapped 
routes that people can use themselves. The most successful 
new walk has been an inclusive Wednesday walk, average 
attendance is 14 people. 
 
The Linford Christie Young Athlete Grant is awarded to young 
residents who are making good progress up the sports 
competition ladder. Over the strategy cycle it has been 
distributed 128 times and to athletes competing in a range of 
sports including taekwondo, athletics, swimming, fencing, 
boxing, tennis and more. Currently it is supporting a GB boxing 
number 1 and a GB taekwondo squad member travelling to this 
year’s European Championships. 
 

Awareness of 
Activity 

The local promotion of Get Active London as the principal web 
based source of information on sports, physical activities and 
venues across the capital has helped the borough reach the 
third highest number of listings of any borough in London. 
 
New work done on the borough’s website in 2014 has made 
navigating to find information easier for customers. In addition, 
the SDT has been working with the Communications team to 
promote opportunities at facilities and within projects.  
 

Developing the 
Workforce 

The SDT organise training opportunities for current and aspiring 
local coaches to increase skills and opportunities to develop a 
new income stream.  This includes subsidised coach education 
courses in First Aid, Safeguarding Children and Level 2 Gym 
Instructor qualifications. four courses were hosted this year with 
in excess of 50 people attending. 
 

Time 
 

People have busy schedules and for many people making time 
for activity is a low priority.  There has been a new focus on 
engaging parents and children in play together, thus both 
gaining valuable active time to improve physical and mental 
health together.  This has been delivered in Children’s Centres 
and other community settings such as nurseries and parks. 
 

 
 

Page 20



 
 

 Space Not A Place 
 
4.4 Changing people’s perception of sport and gyms as being the panacea for 

achieving good health is a challenge as this image turns many people off 
activity.  Developing more opportunities in different places and in different 
ways can help people become more active.  

 

Facilities In recent years there have been a number of capital projects 
particularly in our parks which have enhanced the offer for 
children and young people to take part in sport and physical 
activity. 
 
Some examples are, a new BMX track and outdoor gym at 
Wormwood Scrubs and improvements to tennis courts at 
Bishops Park, Brook Green and South Park.  In addition, at 
Bishops Park there are now table tennis tables and a basketball 
hoop/shooting area, while at South Park there is a new cricket 
practice area and a huge improvement to the multi-use games 
area. 
 
Finally, our younger residents can now enjoy much improved 
play grounds at Bishops Park, William Parnell Park, Hurlingham 
Park, Shepherds Bush Green, Brook Green and Wendell Park. 
 
Community projects and sessions have deliberately made use 
of local venues that are accessible to targeted communities 
including schools, resident / community halls, parks, and estate 
games courts. 
 

Active Travel 
Summer 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All year  

 
A short term cycling project in partnership with Hammersmith 
Community Gardens Association trained eight local volunteers 
and organised five local events and rides.  The project targeted 
beginners and cyclists low on confidence with the intention that 
they will become more regular riders.  More rides are planned 
for 2015. 
 
Walkwell is a local walking scheme set up 10 years ago. It 
encourages walking using pre-assessed routes as a means of 
improving health amongst local people with an inclusive ethos. 
Volunteers are critical to the success of this scheme and walk 
leader training has trained 25 volunteers to support walking 
groups in their local area.  
We currently have 5 regular walks in the borough with an 
average of 45 people attending each week.  
 

Page 21



 
 

Public Health 
 
4.5 The movement of public health responsibilities and professionals into councils 

has brought about some new thinking and opportunities. This will continue to 
influence the plans for targeting those with most to gain from physical activity. 
Successful projects influenced by the Tri-borough public health team include: 

 

Developing 
projects using 
evidence 

A Tri-borough physical activity JSNA was developed and 
utilised a range of evidence from across the country to 
produce a document that provided facts about the benefits 
to long term health. This is currently being used to develop a 
local action plan. 
 
Two physical activity initiatives have been developed to 
increase awareness of the benefits of physical activity and 
to engage people in fun activity. 
 
The ‘Change4Life Parks’ project engaged over 350 people 
in fun activities in local green spaces, areas proven to 
impact mental health, during the summer of 2014. 
This spring saw the launch of the ‘Get Going’ initiative which 
follows on to re-enforce physical activity key messages. It 
will also have associated free activities for targeted groups 
in the community including gym activities for sufferers of 
mental health illness, physical activities for disabled people 
and activities for children and older people.  An event was 
co-delivered with the Park View Community Champions in 
White City at the Medical Centre and engaged 150 people.  
Similar events ran in West Kensington and Ravenscourt 
Park in April 2015. 
 

Public Health 
Funding 

The transfer of public health from the NHS to local 
government is one of the most significant extensions of local 
government powers and duties in recent times.  For Leisure 
Services and others it represents a unique opportunity to 
change the focus from treating sickness to actively 
promoting health and wellbeing. 
 
In 2014 £300k of capital investment from Public Health 
colleagues was allocated to improve the community offer at 
Phoenix Fitness Centre and Janet Adegoke Swimming Pool 
(PFC&JASP) through an improved site, and will seek to 
increase usage from targeted groups. 
 

 
 
5. Addressing Leisure Needs In Challenging Financial Times 
 
5.1 The current financial challenges have meant a change in thinking and strategy 

for all parts of Leisure and Parks Services. 
 
5.2 Important projects to date include: 

Page 22



 
 

• Improvements to the leisure contract for the borough, which means 
aligning PFC&JASP with the other GLL contracted centres (to agree an 
extension from summer 2015 to early 2019) and increased monitoring of 
Fulham Pools run by Virgin Active to improve services to the community 

• Outsourcing sports facilities and continuing to monitor sites already in 
contracts including Bishops Park Tennis, Brook Green Tennis and 
Hammersmith Park’s sports facilities 

• Improving the current sports facilities and looking at increasing bookings 
and income; including development of Linford Christie OSC, South Park 
and Ravenscourt Park facilities, addressing the under provision of sports 
halls, renovation of current facilities in need 

• A review of Leisure Services has to date moved the outdoor sports 
bookings operation to the parks’ contractor Quadron Services Limited from 
an in-house undertaking. 

 

Page 23



 

 

 

 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

Community Safety, Environment and Residents 
Services Policy and Accountability Committee 
 
9 June 2015 
 

Update on SuDS schemes 
 

Report of the Executive Director 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Review and Comment 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected:  
All 

Accountable Executive Director: Nigel Pallace - Executive Director of Transport and 
Technical Services 
 

Report Author: George Warren, Flood Risk 
Manager 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 753 6991 
E-mail: george.warren@lbhf.gov.uk 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1. This report provides a brief overview of the various Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(SuDS) projects being undertaken within the Borough at the request of the 
Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services (CSERS) PAC. These are in 
line with the administration’s priority to implement SuDS on a wide-scale across the 
borough to reduce the risk and impact of flooding. The Manifesto states that: 
“We will also stop the growing concreting over of open space in order to prevent the 
increased run-off of surface water, and will insist that new parking areas and hard 
standings are rainwater permeable”. 

 
1.2. Projects include: 

• Australia Road 

• Kenmont Gardens 

• Shepherds Bush Town Centre West (Goldhawk Rd, Uxbridge Rd and Lime 
Grove) 

• Counters Creek Green Streets (Melina Road, Mendora Road and RBKC’s 
Arundel Gardens) 

• Life+ (Housing) 

• Future Projects 

Agenda Item 8

Page 24



 

 

2. Introduction & Background 

2.1. The previous Council administration had committed to implementing more SuDS 
projects to help reduce the amount of surface water draining into the combined 
sewerage system to reduce the risk of flooding to properties within the borough. This 
has been continued further by the current administration. These systems will also 
provide additional benefits such as public space improvements and environmental 
benefits. 

 
2.2. A number of projects have been identified to trial/install different SuDS techniques, a 

brief summary of some of the key schemes are covered in this report.   

3. Australia Road 

3.1. A Neighbourhood and Corridor Scheme which has developed into a flagship SuDS 
Scheme. The proposals are to convert the existing road into a pedestrian and cyclist 
space with limited vehicular access for emergency and maintenance vehicles. It also 
helps provide a safer link between the Early Years Centre and the playgrounds (on 
opposing sides of the road). 

3.2. Initial neighbourhood wide consultation with residents, businesses and councillors 
was undertaken in March 2013 as part of the White City Neighbourhood scheme. 
During this neighbourhood wide consultation, the initial idea to convert part of 
Australia Road into a pedestrian space was raised by Randolph Beresford Early 
Years Centre and supported by both Team White City and the White City Residents’ 
Association. Further consultation was undertaken on-site with Team White City, 
Randolph Beresford Early Years Centre and the White City Residents Association 
between March 2013 and March 2014 as the concept design for the scheme was 
being developed. 

3.3. Public consultation regarding the concept design for the Australia Road pedestrian 
space was undertaken in February and March 2014. Residents responded to the 
consultation either during the public meeting held on 18 February 2014 at the White 
City Community Centre or via online and postal options. 

3.4. The scheme includes the following SuDS / flood risk reduction elements: 

• Permeable Paving • Rainwater Harvesting 

• Raingardens • Bio-retention Basins 

• Controlled Sewer Release  

3.5. Sustainable drainage is a core aspect of the concept design. The aim is for water to 
be retained within the site during storm conditions and for peak discharge into the 
combined sewer system to be reduced during rainfall events. The retention basins 
are the critical features to achieve this. Permeable paving will also be used 
throughout the paved areas of the site. Rainwater from the school roof will be fed into 
a retention basin using open channels. 

3.6. The design restricts runoff rates to the sewer to greenfield rates up to the 1 in 30yr 
ARI and reduces overall flow volumes to sewer by 50%. 

3.7. Recent hydraulic modelling carried out as part of the Surface Water Management 
Plan (SWMP), currently out for public consultation (www.lbhf.gov.uk/swmp), shows 
this section of Australia Road to be a Flooding Hotspot. The implementation of SuDS 

Page 25



 

 

here will help to address this flooding issue as well as provide amenity and 
biodiversity benefits. 

3.8. The project will cost approximately £830,000, made up from TfL LIP Funding, Lead 
Local Flood Authority Funding and an additional contribution from the GLA.  

3.9. Approval to undertake the concept design and consultation for pedestrian space was 
originally granted on 2nd September 2013 (White City Neighbourhood Project - 
Significant Works, TTSCM Decision Report). Funding approval was granted for the 
overall LIP programme (through the Full Cabinet Report - TfL Annual Integrated 
Transport Investment Programme 2014/15, within which the Australia Road Scheme 
was highlighted,) on 16 September 2013. Additional spending approval and approval 
to proceed to construction from detailed design and consultation was later granted 
on 6th February 2015 (Australia Road Corridor and SuDS Scheme, Cabinet Member 
for Community Safety, Environment and Residents Services Decision Report). 

3.10. Work began on site on 10th March 2015 and is due to be completed in late July 2015. 
Planting may occur at a later date to avoid placing plants under stress during the 
summer months. 

3.11. An analysis of the impacts of the proposed works was completed as part of a 
previous Transport and Technical Services Cabinet Member Report The positive and 
negatives impacts of the preferred option are: 

 

Positives Negatives 

A safer environment and improved accessibility for children and 
residents to the Early Years Centre, the adventure playground, 
and the community playground. 

Travel distance increase of 320m 
for residents of Evans, Davis, and 
Durban houses when travelling 
to/from the south by motor 
vehicle. Travel distance to/from 
the north is unaffected. 
Pedestrians and cyclists will be 
unaffected. 

Improved wellbeing of children by providing a space for safe, 
active play. 

A community and event space. The scheme provides an area for 
people to meet and take part in community events. A project that 
will improve the street environment and introduce a focal point for 
the residents of the estate 

Safe cycling route and a space for children to learn to ride a bike. Reduction of parking within the 
estate of 137m. Parking stress is 
very low in the White City Estate 
so this is not anticipated to be a 
significant impact. Night time 
parking occupancy within the 
section proposed to be removed 
is only 5% and parking 
occupancy on adjacent streets is 
20-50%. 

Increased opportunities for children’s education. The sustainable 
drainage features and planting will contribute to children’s 
education by allowing children to see the impact of rainfall, learn 
about nature, and interact with the natural environment. 

Sustainable drainage has been incorporated in to the concept 
design. This will allow rainwater to be retained within the site and 
slowly seep into the ground rather than the sewer. This will help to 
reduce rainwater entering the sewer network and reduce the 
potential future risk of flooding. 

Improved air quality.  

Improved quality of the street  

 

Page 26



 

 

 

Figures 1 & 2 - Artist Impressions of Basin, Wiggly Wall and Plaza 

 

Figure 3 - Site Photo 10/03/15   Figure 4 - Site Photo 23/03/15 

 

Figure 5 - Site Photo 21/04/15    Figure 6 - Site Photo 01/05/15  

Page 27



 

 

 

Figure 7 - Site Photo 06/05/15   Figure 8 - Site Photo 07/05/15 

4. Kenmont Gardens 

4.1. This is a Neighbourhood and Corridor Scheme which developed to incorporate 
SuDS. The area was previously carriageway and has subsequently been 
pedestrianised. The carriageway is still in existence but has been closed off with 
bollards. The area is raised and partially landscaped, with three trees planted, but it 
is in general a fairly low grade landscaped area.  

4.2. The design significantly improves this space through the introduction of an ovoid 
area of seating surrounded by hard and soft landscaping. Lighting will also be 
improved and a sustainable drainage system put in place. The SuDS scheme is a 
retrofit to the existing drainage system of a deep combined storm and foul sewer fed 
by gullies that were formerly in the carriageway. 

4.3. The community have been involved throughout the project, with concept designs 
sent out for public consultation in September 2014, from which a positive response 
was received and a preferred option selected. In addition to this a consistent 
dialogue has been maintained with College Park Residents Association (CoPRA) 
and Kenmont Primary School. 

4.4. CoPRA and Kenmont Primary School have also been heavily involved in the latter 
stages, with pupils of the school creating a series of clay tiles, with the supervision of 
a professional potter, which are to be installed around the new ovoid. Images of the 
proposed tiles are shown in Figure 16. The cost of the tiles are to be met through a 
combination of fundraising by the school and a contribution from the council. A 
maintenance fund has also been setup by the Primary School for the tiles, reducing 
the financial burden on the council for any future damages to these pieces.  

4.5. In addition to this the Flood Risk Manager and a member of staff from Blue Green 
Urban (the manufacturers of the products installed) presented to the pupils of 
Kenmont Primary School at their assembly on the 24th March, providing a brief 
explanation on the water cycle, how the system works and the benefits it will bring to 
the community (see Figure 15). 

4.6. The scheme includes the following SuDS / flood risk reduction elements: 

• Permeable Paving • Geo-Cellular Storage 

• Raingardens • Controlled Sewer Release  

Page 28



 

 

4.7. The design restricts runoff to greenfield for events up to the 1 in 10yr ARI with 
exceedence routes to existing gullies during larger events. 

4.8. The project cost approximately £270,000, made up from TfL LIP Funding and Lead 
Local Flood Authority Funding.  

4.9. Work began on site on 9th January 2015 and the main physical works were 
completed on 31st March 2015. The project is currently awaiting the completion of the 
tiles by the community prior to finishing the ovoid and undertaking the planting. 

4.10. Community planting and the installation of the tiles is due to be carried out on 2nd 
June 2015 as part of a street party. During the event 4 senior members of CoPRA, 
whom were born and still live in the area, will each lay a tile.  

4.11. Final surfacing of the ovoid and installation of the educational signs will occur directly 
after the community event. 

 

Figure 9 & 10 - Site prior to work commencing 

 

Figure 11 - Site Set Out    Figure 12 - Underground Storage Cells 

Page 29



 

 

 

Figure 13 - Construction of Planters  Figure 14 - View from North of Site 

 

Figure 15 – Assembly on 24/03/15  Figure 16 - Image of Tiles 

5. Shepherd’s Bush Town Centre West 

5.1. This project involves the revamp of Shepherd’s Bush through a major transport 
improvement scheme, covering the area from the eastern ends of Goldhawk Road 
and Uxbridge Road to Coverdale Road, Lime Grove and Devonport Road. At present 
work has commenced on Goldhawk Road where in addition to general highway 
improvements, a series of SuDS tree pits have been installed which accept water 
from the highway and provide attenuation prior to a controlled release to the sewer.  

5.2. The scheme includes the following SuDS / flood risk reduction elements: 

• Side Entry Gullies (bespoke) • Geo-Cellular Storage 

• Controlled Sewer Release  

5.3. The total project cost is £3,831,000, with funding provided from a mixture of sources, 
including: TfL Major Scheme, Section 106, TfL LIP and the Lead Local Flooding 
Authority. 

5.4. Work began on the south side of Goldhawk Road in July 2014. Works are due to be 
completed on Goldhawk Road in December 2015. 

5.5. All tree pits have been installed and 5 of the 7 trees along Goldhawk Road have 
been planted. The final couple are awaiting the completion of a nearby development 
to avoid damaging the trees. 

Page 30



 

 

5.6. To date the proliferation of utilities within the footway has resulted in their being 
fewer and more expensive SuDS measures installed along Goldhawk and therefore 
a decision will be required in due course as to whether it is worth persevering with 
similar installations along Uxbridge Road and Lime Grove. 

 

 

Figure 17 - Excavated Tree Pits along Goldhawk Road 

6. LiFE+ 

6.1. LBHF officers working with Groundwork submitted a successful funding bid to the 
European Union’s EU Life+ programme ‘Climate Proofing Social Housing 
Landscapes’ for a grant to deliver environmental improvements on housing estates 
within the borough in early 2014.  

6.2. The three sites identified for environmental improvements were Queen Caroline 
Estate W12, Chessman’s Terrace W14, and Cyril Thatcher / Richard Knight / Eric 
Macdonald Houses SW6. 

6.3. The improvements that will be delivered through the programme are: 

• 2,500m2 of enhanced green infrastructure 

• 25% increase in permeable surfaces 

• 20,000m3 of water retention capacity 

• 600 trees planted 

• 600m2 of green roofs 

Page 31



 

 

• 400m2 of food growing capacity 

• 10 rain water harvesting systems 

6.4. The following Green Infrastructure (GI) and SuDS measures are being installed 
across the three housing estates: 

• Permeable Paving • Green Roofs 

• Rainwater Harvesting • Raingardens 

• Swales  • Bio-retention Basins 

• Downpipe Disconnection • Controlled Sewer Release  

6.5. Groundwork London and LBHF Housing have led on the public consultation, with 
drop in sessions held on a regular basis to keep the residents of the estates updated 
with progress. 

6.6. Capacity building sessions have also been organised as part of the project to 
educate staff within the housing estates teams about the benefits of Green 
Infrastructure SuDS and how they should be maintained. 

6.7. Works began on site at Cyril Thatcher / Richard Knight /Eric MacDonald in March 
2014, with pram-shed green roofs, swales and raingardens have already been 
installed (see Figure 19). A large scale green roof is also currently being installed on 
Richard Knight House, which has tied in with planned maintenance to the roof for 
efficiency. 

 

Figure 18 - Cyril Thatcher, Eric MacDonald & Richard Knight Houses 

Page 32



 

 

   

Figure 19 - Richard Knight House (Pram-shed Green Roof, Swale & Raingarden) 

6.8. Work has begun at QCE, with a downpipe disconnected and dish channel installed 
across a resident’s property to connect into a newly constructed swale, removing a 
large proportion of rainwater that previously fell on the roof and ran to sewer out of 
network. 

6.9. Work has also commenced on the pram-shed green roofs and much of the 
landscaping works on the QCE.  

 

Figure 20 – Queen Caroline Estate (QCE) 

Page 33



 

 

   

Figure 21 - QCE (Downpipe disconnection across private property, swale & marked out basin) 

6.10. Work is due to commence at Chessman’s Terrace in May 2015.  

 

Figure 22 - Chessman’s Terrace 

6.11. The project is on course to be completed in March 2016. 

6.12. The overall 3 year programme budget is €1,615,636. The Council has made 
provision within the Housing Revenue Account business plan to fund at current 
exchange rates a sum of €441k (£359k) from within the Housing Revenue Account 
over 3 years. Additionally, the Council will incur a further €316k (£257k) of 
expenditure and this will be met from the EU Life grant. Groundwork will contribute 
€367k (£299k) from its own resources and a further €492k (£401k) of expenditure will 
be funded from the EU Life grant. This equates to LBHF leveraging a total of circa 
£957k of external funding towards the proposed projects. 

Page 34



 

 

7. Counters Creek SuDS Retrofit Pilot Schemes 

7.1. This is a Thames Water Utilities Limited (TWUL) project to trial the installation of 
SuDS within the highway with a focus on their flood risk benefits. Three streets were 
selected, two of which are within LBHF, these are Mendora Road and Melina Road. 
Note that a similar scheme is being proposed for RBKC’s Arundel Gardens (see 

Figure 23 - Site Selection   Figure 24 - Mendora Rd). 

7.2. Mendora Road will involve the installation of permeable paving within the parking 
bays on each side of the road, with underground storage provided by geo-cellular 
structures on one side and aggregate on the other, with a flow control outlet to the 
existing sewer.  

7.3. Melina Road will involve the installation of four rain gardens with geo-cellular storage 
and controlled flows to the sewer.  

7.4. The schemes include the following SuDS / flood risk reduction elements: 

• Permeable Paving • Geo-Cellular Storage 

• Raingardens • Controlled Sewer Release  

7.5. The storage in both cases has sufficient capacity to store surface water runoff from 
this area for an event up to the 100 year event plus an allowance for climate change 
(+30%). This will provide an increased flood protection to the immediate area as well 
as freeing up significant capacity within the combined sewer network for areas 
downstream to potentially drain to. 

7.6. The SuDS pilot project communication and consultation process, led by TWUL 
throughout, began in June 2012 and has taken a twin-track approach to community 
engagement, undertaking a wide community education and engagement programme 
with a more targeted engagement of residents specifically on the shortlisted streets 
and final pilot streets. Following evening consultation workshops in December 2012 
at both town halls for residents and community representatives, a more focussed 
street-specific consultation exercise was carried out during 2013. As the design was 
refined regular drop in sessions were organised, giving residents and interested 
parties an opportunity to view the designs in more detail and speak with the project 
team. LBHF officers were in attendance at all sessions. The latest sessions took 
place at local venues on the 24th and 31st March 2015. 

7.7. TWUL are proposing to fund the construction of both projects, which are to be 
carried out by LBHF Highway’s Principal Framework Contractors, including the 
monitoring and maintenance of the installations for a period of 24 months post 
completion of the construction works. The installation of the SuDS at both sites will 
come at no cost to the Council, with officers time also funded by TWUL for the 
project. The combined capital costs for both schemes is estimated to be 
approximately £900,000. Once this 24 month period has expired the  monitoring and 
maintenance responsibilities will lie with the Council thereafter.  

7.8. Discussions are still ongoing with regards to the Heads of Terms. Once agreed then 
it is envisaged that work would commence one month post this date. At present it is 
estimated that work will commence on Mendora Road and Melina Road in late June 
2015. 

Page 35



 

 

 

Figure 23 - Site Selection   Figure 24 - Mendora Rd 

 

Figure 25 - Melina Road 

8. Future Projects 

8.1. Future projects include:  

• Talgarth Road – A pilot scheme to monitor the effectiveness of SuDS in 
helping to tackle air-quality whilst also improving a cycle route. If this shows 
the SuDS to be successful at tackling air quality then it is intended to replicate 
this at various sites around the borough without the need for expensive 
monitoring. Concept designs to be developed in summer 2015, with 
construction anticipated to commence in winter 2015.  

• Edith Road – Converting existing large areas of traffic calming road hatchings 
into roadside raingardens in which to divert the highway surface water. 
Concept designs to be developed in summer 2015, with construction 
anticipated to commence in winter 2015. 

• Liaising with colleagues in ELRS and Housing to identify potential 
collaborative works where there may be potential to install SuDS as part of 
their scheduled maintenance/enhancement projects. 

• Investigating the potential for permeable crossovers. Where 
residents/businesses require amendments to the footway to gain access from 
the carriageway to a property then there may be potential to install a 
permeable surface to help tackle surface water. This upgrade would not 
increase existing crossover fees to the applicant as the additional cost of the 
permeable surfacing (and associated drainage) would be met by the Lead 
Local Flood Authority budget. This will only be suitable in areas where 
drainage permits and typical designs are currently being developed. 

Page 36



 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

Community Safety, Environment and Residents 
Services Policy and Accountability Committee 
 
9 June 2015 
 

Work Programme 
 

Report of the Director of Law 
  

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Review & Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: Tasnim Shawkat, Director of Law 
 

Report Author: David Abbott,  
Committee Co-ordinator 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2063 
E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1   The Committee is asked to give consideration to its work programme for 

the forthcoming year. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1   The Committee is asked to consider the proposed work programme and 
suggest further items for consideration. 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. None N/A N/A 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 
Appendix 1 – Work Programme 

Agenda Item 9

Page 37



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Draft Work Programme 2015-16 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Meeting Date Item Report Author(s) Comments 
September    

16 Sept 2015 Air Quality Update 

To receive an update on air quality in the borough following the 
report to the Committee in July 2014. 

Richard Buckley Link with CEPAC 

16 Sept 2015 Residents Services 

To gather public views on residents services issues. 

 

TBC  

16 Sept 2015 Parking Task Group 

Final report of the task group. 

Craig Bowdery  

16 Sept 2015 Heritage Streetlighting 

To review the Council’s approach to replacing heritage street 
lighting and how residents are informed and offered opportunities 
to sponsor the lighting. 

TBC Requested by Cllr Phibbs 

November    

18 Nov 2015 Cycling Update 

 

TBC  

January    

18 Jan 2016 Items TBC 

 

 

 

 
 

March    

2 March 2016 Items TBC  
 

P
a
g
e
 3

8



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Draft Work Programme 2015-16 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 

April    

12 April 2016 Items TBC 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Suggested Items - Not Scheduled 

• Cllr Phibbs: Item on how more residents could be encouraged to serve as Special Constables. 

• Cllr Phibbs: Street tree pits – LBHF are currently using tarmac to capp tree bases instead of a traditional hoggin that would 
be more in-keeping with the area (possible link into wider concern RE: flooding and surface water retention). 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

9


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Borough-Wide 20mph Speed Limit
	Appendix 3

	7 Provision of Sport and Leisure Facilities
	8 Update on Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) Schemes
	9 Work Programming
	Appendix 1 - Work Programme 2015-16


